Public Document Pack

Agenda
Cabinet Member for Regulatory Functions
Date:

Wednesday, 5 April 2017

Time:

Not required

Venue:

Not required

To:

Councillor R Poole

Item
1

Wards Affected
Council Pavement Cafe Licensing Policy (Pages 3 - 22)

Contact: Anne Jenkins (Democratic Services Officer)
Tel; 01633 656656
E-mail: anne.jenkins@newport.gov.uk
Date of Issue: 28 March 2017

All Wards

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 1

Report
Cabinet Member for Regulatory Functions
Part 1
Date:

5 April 2017

Item No:

01

Subject

Council Pavement Café Licensing Policy

Purpose

To approve a Pavement Café Licensing Policy and fees which allows businesses to apply
to the Council for a licence to place tables and chairs on the highway.

Author

Public Protection Manager

Ward

City Wide

Summary Alfresco eating is becoming a more widespread aspect of urban life and the presence of
tables and chairs on the pavement can make a positive contribution by adding vitality,
colour, life and interest to an area. The Council supports and encourages the provision of
pavement cafes as they can help to maximise the use of public spaces, aid the local
economy and add to the facilities offered to people who visit, live, and work in Newport.
Tables and chairs placed on the highway without permission may be illegal as they could
amount to an obstruction. However, permission to use the highway for pavement cafes
may be granted the Council under Section 115E of the Highways Act 1980. The Current
Pavement Café Licensing policy was previously administrated by the Council’s Street
Scene Services. It is now believed this function is more appropriately delivered by Public
Protection’s Licensing Team.
In addition to this transfer, we have taken the opportunity to fully revise and update the
policy, including the fees structure.
This Pavement Café Licensing Policy will allow businesses to apply to the Council to
place tables and chairs and set up night time “smoking areas” on the highway.

Proposal

To approve the Pavement Café Licensing Policy, and the associated 2017/18 fee
structure.

Action by Head of Law and Regulation
Timetable Immediate
This report was prepared after consultation with:





Licensing Manager
Head of Law & Regulation
Head of Finance
Head of People and Business Change

Page 3





Partnership Manager
Planning Manager
Street Scene Managers

Signed

Page 4

1. Background
1.1 Alfresco eating is becoming a more widespread aspect of urban life and the presence of tables and
chairs on the pavement can make a positive contribution by adding vitality, colour, life and interest to
an area. Newport City Council supports and encourages the provision of pavement cafes in the city
as they can help maximise the use of public spaces, aid the local economy and add to the facilities
offered to people who visit, live, and work in Newport.
1.2 Tables and chairs placed on the highway without permission can be illegal as they could amount to
an obstruction. However, permission to use the highway for pavement cafes may be granted by the
Council under Section 115E of the Highways Act 1980.
1.3 Accordingly, whilst the Council wishes to encourage pavement cafes, it is important that they are
properly located and managed. This is to ensure that they meet the standards expected in Newport
and that they do not obstruct the highway nor create a hazard for pedestrians, especially for blind,
partially sighted and other disabled people.
1.4 The area to be used must take into account other needs in the immediate vicinity e.g. kerbside
parking, bus stops and pedestrian crossings. Pedestrians’ needs must be paramount. The expanse
of the pavement café must not conflict with any access or dropped crossings that are required for
free passage of normal road users. Barriers and tapping rails should be positioned and maintained to
the satisfaction of the Council and should be totally removed outside the permitted hours of operation
of the café, restaurant or bar.
1.5 The pavement café is normally expected to be in an area directly in front of and be visible from the
existing premises. Emergency exit routes, including those of adjacent buildings, should not be
obstructed by the pavement café and emergency service vehicles must have access along all streets
at all times, even in pedestrianised streets.
1.6 In general, all parts of the highway may be used for Pavement Cafés, provided all safety and nonobstruction requirements are met. The exceptions are:




Any carriageway or 'shared use surface'
Any highway verge where width of the pavement makes it impractical.
Where authorised street furniture makes it impossible

1.7 Although an existing Pavement Café Licensing Policy did exist, it was out of date and failed to take
into account the significant redevelopment within the city centre. The new, revised policy is more
extensive, takes into account the experience of other city centres and provides clear guidance to
existing and new businesses on what will be allowed. Additionally, with the introduction of the indoor
smoking ban, it allows businesses to monitor and control patrons in a controlled smoking area.
Currently, some smokers from licensed premises spill out across the city centre streets at night which
is causing issues: including littering, anti-social behaviour and conflict with moving vehicles.
1.8 A copy of the draft policy can be found in Appendix A of this report.
2. Pavement Café Practice in Other Local Authority Areas
The adoption of Street Café furniture licensing is be found in the majority of cities and towns in UK
including some neighbouring authorities. The key objective in the majority of the policies is to encourage
the provision of street cafes, as they can make a positive contribution by adding vitality, colour, life and
interest to the street scene, but at the same time ensuring that they meet the high standards expected of
the city or town centre and that they do not obstruct the highway or create a hazard for pedestrians.

Page 5

3. Proposed Fees
The proposed fees have been set low (but sufficient to cover Council costs) and also allow existing
businesses a 75% discount on applying for a licence. It hoped by having these fees have been set at a
level that will encourage businesses to apply for such a licence.
4. Consultation on the Policy
4.1 Public consultation took place between 21st December 2016 and 28th February 2017 to involve
people in the formulation of this policy. Representations from the consultation can be found in
Appendix B of this report. As part of the consultation, Licensing Officers hand delivered copies of the
draft policy to all relevant businesses (34, including pubs, café and food outlets) within the City
Centre and explained its contents. 34 businesses were visited within the City Centre: these included
pubs, cafés and food outlets that potentially could benefit from such a policy. It was also presented to
the City Centre Pub-watch group and advertised on the Council web site with Twitter feeds sent out.
4.2 Adrian Evans of the Business Improvement District is critical of charging for a licence. However
businesses already pay for a licence; this is not new, just an improved regime. The fees are small
and existing licence holders will have “grandfather rights” and receive a discount in the first year.
5. Financial Summary
5.1 The fees proposed for 2017/18 are:
1. An administration fee for processing a street café licence application is £150 covering the
administrative and legal costs incurred in the preparation and issuing of the licence. Those
existing business operating before the introduction of this Policy, will be given a 75% discount in
the first 12 months of the introduction of the policy and will be granted “Grandfather” status.
2. Upon approval of the licence, the balance of the fee will be required which covers the monitoring
and enforcement and is based upon the number of chairs and tables and hours of use.
Number Tables & Chairs
No more 4 chairs (1 to 2 tables)
No more 12 chairs (1 to 6 tables)
No more than 24 chairs (1 to 12 tables)
More than 24 chairs (unspecified number tables)
If the premises wish to operate a “Smoking Area” after 23:00hrs
Change of name on licence or duplicate licence.

Annual Fee*
£55
£85
£150
£185
Additional £50
£25

5.2 The income stream is not certain at present as it not known how many businesses will wish to hold a
licence, but it will not be large.
Eg 20 businesses with 4 chairs would generate £1,100 per year.
10 businesses with 4 chairs would generate £555
20 business with average 4-20 seats plus 10 business having night time “smoking” areas would
generate £2,200
5.3 The Policy aims to contribute to improve the city and as such could attract more restaurants and café
style businesses. This in turn could also increase revenue via the Council’s Licensing Act function,
were the business to require an alcohol licence.
5.4 Subsequent years’ fees would need to be reviewed to ensure they meet the cost of administering
and enforcing the licences.

Page 6

6. Risks
Risk

Impact of
Risk if it
occurs*
(H/M/L)
H

Probability
of risk
occurring
(H/M/L)
L

What is the Council doing or
what has it done to avoid the
risk or reduce its effect

Setting
The fees will be reviewed
unrealistic
frequently, as with other licensing
income targets
fees. It is anticipated the new
for a new
income stream will be small.
endeavour
* Taking account of proposed mitigation measures

Who is
responsible for
dealing with the
risk?
Licensing Manager

7. Links to Council Policies and Priorities
Ensuring that this work is completed as required will support the following Council Policies and
Strategies:



Newport City Council’s Corporate Plan “Standing Up for Newport” 2012-2017 (Relevant priorities: “A
Working City” “A Safer City”).
One Newport Public Service Board themes; “Economy and Skills” ‘Safe and Cohesive
Communities”, “Safer City Centre”

8. Options Available
Option 1
To agree the revised Pavement Café Licensing Policy and Fees.
Option 2
Not to agree the revised Pavement Café Licensing Policy and Fees.
9. Preferred Option and Why
Option 1- To agree the revised Pavement Café Licensing Policy and fees.
This will bring in a new licensing framework to encourage pavement cafes in the spirit of city
regeneration and economic growth, yet control their location and make up to ensure appropriate safety
and appearance standards are maintained.

Comments of Chief Financial Officer
The fees and charges detailed within the report were not part of the overall Fees and Charges report
previously taken, but will be included going forward in future years. The expected revenue from these
fees are expected to be approximately £2k per annum, and currently have not been built into the budget
for 2017/18 for either Streetscene or Law and Regulation and will represent an additional, although
small, avenue of income.

Comments of Monitoring Officer
The proposed Pavement Café Licensing Policy is in accordance with the Council’s legal powers under
section 115E of the Highways Act 1980. The delegated power to grant and approve these licenses has
now been transferred to the Head of Law and Regulation, following amendments to the officer scheme of
delegation recommended by Democratic Services Committee, on the basis that this regulatory function
is similar in nature to the street trading consents that are administered by the Licensing Section. The
Council has the power to grant licences to place tables and chairs on the adopted highway, subject to
the consent of the frontages, and to attach conditions to the licences which regulate the operation and
use of these pavement café areas. The Council also has the power to charge reasonable fees and
charges for the grant of these pavement licences, to reflect the cost to the Council of issuing and
regulating the licences. The proposed fees and charges being recommended in the policy are

Page 7

considered to be reasonable and a true reflection of these costs. As with the determination of all
discretionary licences, the Council has to act reasonably and consistently. Therefore, the proposed
policy sets out a clear framework and criteria for the grant of these licences and standard conditions to
regulate their use. The draft policy has been subject to consultation and the only adverse comments
relate to issues of highway safety and smoking, which are regulated anyway by the unobstructed space
criteria and smoking regulations contained or referred to in the licence conditions. The policy is also
consistent with the Council’s sustainable well-being objectives in relation to the creation of an economic,
safe and viable City Centre and should assist with the bid to achieve Purple Flag status.

Comments of Head of People and Business Change
The report takes account of equalities issues and the need to ensure that all pedestrians and particularly
those with a disability can maintain their normal path where feasible.
The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 sustainable development principle has been
considered in the formulation of the proposal (details below). In particular a two-month public
consultation was undertaken to inform the proposed policy.
There are no staffing issues arising directly from this report.

Local issues
Not applicable- city wide.

Scrutiny Committees
Not applicable.

Equalities Impact Assessment
A detailed EIA has been drawn up. Whilst the Council wishes to encourage pavement cafes, it is
important that they are properly located and managed. This is to ensure that they meet the standards
expected in Newport and that they do not obstruct the highway nor create a hazard for pedestrians,
especially for blind, partially sighted and other disabled people.
In paragraph 12 of the Policy, we describe how it is essential that the means of enclosure is fit for
purpose and suitable for the terrain in which that the pavement café operates. Inter alia, the Policy states
that the means of enclosure must not contain protruding parts and have a tapping rail along the bottom
of the barrier that visually impaired pedestrians can use to navigate around the street café using a stick.
The standard guidance will be that a licence will only be issued if an unimpeded pedestrian route can be
maintained at all times. The route shall ensure that all pedestrians and particularly those with a disability
can maintain their normal path where feasible.

Children and Families (Wales) Measure
Nothing specific

Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015
The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act, is about improving the social, economic,
environmental and cultural wellbeing of Wales. In developing this policy the Sustainable development
principles have been considered:
Long Term: The policy integrates with the long term strategy for an economically viable and safe City
centre.
Prevention: The Policy seeks to improve public safety, this reflected in section 1.6 of the draft policy.
Integration: The Policy integrates Newport City Council’s Corporate Plan “Standing Up for Newport”
2012-2017 (Relevant priorities: “A Working City” “A Safer City”) and One Newport Public Service Board
themes; “Economy and Skills” ‘Safe and Cohesive Communities”, “Safer City Centre”
Collaboration: The Policy has been drawn up with the assistance of Gwent Police Licensing team.
Involvement: Full public consultation has been conducted with members of the public and local
business; visits were also made to local business to seek views via the consultation process.

Page 8

Crime and Disorder Act 1998
Nothing specific.

Consultation
See paragraph 3 above.

Background Papers
Section 115E of the Highways Act 1980 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1980/66

Dated: 5 April 2017

Page 9

Appendix A

Newport City Council’s
Pavement Café Licensing Policy
Contents
Cabinet Member for Regulatory Functions ...............................................................................................1
Subject
1.

Council Pavement Café Licensing Policy ............................................................................1

Background ................................................................................................................................3

Comments of Chief Financial Officer .................................................................................................5
Comments of Monitoring Officer ........................................................................................................5
Comments of Head of People and Business Change ........................................................................6
Local issues ......................................................................................................................................6
Scrutiny Committees .........................................................................................................................6
Equalities Impact Assessment ...........................................................................................................6
Children and Families (Wales) Measure ............................................................................................6
Consultation ......................................................................................................................................7
Background Papers ...........................................................................................................................7
Appendix A ...............................................................................................................................................8
1.

Introduction ...................................................................................................................................10

2.

Legal Framework and Controls ....................................................................................................11

3.

Private Land ...................................................................................................................................12

4.

Right of Access .............................................................................................................................12

5.

Advertising ....................................................................................................................................13

6.

Designing the Pavement Café ......................................................................................................13

7.

Minimum Unobstructed Space Criteria ........................................................................................13

8.

Lighting ..........................................................................................................................................13

9.

Tables and Chairs shall be: ..........................................................................................................14

10.

Parasols/Umbrellas....................................................................................................................14

11.

Space Heaters ............................................................................................................................14

12.

Barriers .......................................................................................................................................15

13.

Example of Good Practice.........................................................................................................15

14.

Managing the street café & Insurance. .....................................................................................16

Page 10

The licensee will be required to indemnify the Council against all actions, demands, costs, charges or
expenses arising from using the highway under the permission granted. The Council will, therefore,
require the licensee to take out third party public liability insurance in the sum of at least £5,000,000. ...16
15.

Operation....................................................................................................................................16

16.

Fees ............................................................................................................................................16

18.

CONDITIONS FOR PAVEMENT CAFÉ LICENCES. ...................................................................16

Appendix to Policy

Fees 2017/18 ...................................................................................18

Appendix B .............................................................................................................................................19
From: lindsey hayes [mailto:**********] ...................................................................................................20
Sent: 03 January 2017 00:16 .................................................................................................................20
To: Environment Licensing .....................................................................................................................20
Subject: PLACING TABLES, CHAIRS AND OTHER OBSTRUCTIONS ON PAVEMENTS OUTSIDE
SHOPS, PUBS AND RESTAURANTS IN NEWPORT ............................................................................20
From: Catherine Campbell [mailto:***********] ........................................................................................20
Sent: 03 February 2017 16:14 ...............................................................................................................20
To: Environment Licensing .....................................................................................................................20
Subject: Outdoor eating in Newport .......................................................................................................20
From: Cheryl Wilkinson [mailto:*******] ...................................................................................................20

Page 11

1. Introduction
1.1 Alfresco eating is becoming a more widespread aspect of urban life and the presence of tables and
chairs on the pavement can make a positive contribution by adding vitality, colour, life and interest to
an area. Newport City Council supports and encourages the provision of pavement cafes in the city
as they can help maximise the use of public spaces, aid the local economy and add to the facilities
offered to people who visit, live, and work in Newport.
1.2 Tables and chairs placed on the highway without permission can be illegal as they could amount to
an obstruction. However, permission to use the highway for pavement cafes may be granted the
Council under Section 115E of the Highways Act 1980.
1.3 Accordingly, whilst the Council wishes to encourage pavement cafes, it is important that they are
properly located and managed. This is ensure that they meet the standards we expected in Newport
and that they do not obstruct the highway nor create a hazard for pedestrians, especially for blind,
partially sighted and other disabled people.
1.4 The area to be used must take into account other needs in the immediate vicinity e.g. kerbside
parking, bus stops and pedestrian crossings. Pedestrians’ needs must be paramount. The expanse
of the pavement café must not conflict with any access or dropped crossings that are required for
free passage of normal road users. Barriers and tapping rails should be positioned and maintained to
the satisfaction of Newport City Council and should be totally removed outside the permitted hours of
operation of the café, restaurant or bar.
1.5 The pavement café is normally expected to be in an area directly in front of and be visible from the
existing premises. Emergency exit routes, including those of adjacent buildings, should not be
obstructed by the pavement café and emergency service vehicles must have access along all streets
at all times, even in pedestrianised streets.
1.6 In general, all parts of the highway may be used for Pavement Cafés, assuming all safety and nonobstruction requirements are met. The exceptions are:





Any carriageway or 'shared use surface'
Any highway verge
Where width of the pavement makes it impractical.
Where authorised street furniture makes it impossible

Licences will not normally be granted where:











A significant effect on road safety would arise either from the siting of the tables and chairs, or
from customers visiting or leaving the licensed area, or
Where there are concerns over the recorded level of personal injury accidents in the locality
where the tables and chairs will be sited, or
There would be a significant loss of amenity caused by traffic, noise, rubbish, potential for the
harbourage of vermin, odour or fumes, or
There is a conflict with Traffic Orders, such as waiting restrictions, or
The site obstructs either pedestrian or vehicular access, or traffic flows, or places pedestrians in
danger when in use, or
The tables and chairs obstruct the safe passage of users of the footway or carriageway, or
The area to be licensed interferes with sight lines for any road users such as at road junctions, or
pedestrian crossing facilities, or
The site does not allow the licence holder, staff and customers to park in a safe manner, or
The trading activity is carried out after dusk and the site is not adequately lit to allow safe access
and egress from the site for both customers and staff; or
The existing toilet and washing facilities are not adequate to accommodate an increased number
of customers using the pavement café, or

Page 12




The Council is not satisfied that applicants have made satisfactory arrangements for the storage
and collection of all refuse associated with their business or
The Council is not satisfied that applicants have made satisfactory arrangements for the storage
of all tables and chairs off the highway without impeding any access or egress from the premises.

1.7 In considering the above matters, the standard guidance will be that a licence will only be issued if an
unimpeded pedestrian route can be maintained at all times. The route shall ensure that all
pedestrians and particularly those with a disability can maintain their normal path where feasible. All
applications will be considered on their own merits.
1.8 Pavement café licences will only be issued to cafes, restaurants, public houses or other catering
establishments that serve food and drink within the premises.
1.9 The Council will carry out periodic inspections to make sure that all the terms and conditions of the
licence are being observed.
1.10 A pre-licensing visit will be made to each premise upon receipt of an application for the grant,
renewal or variation of a pavement café licence, to discuss the application process, the proposed
operation of the cafe etc. to provide advice and information to the applicant.
1.11 Once the pavement café licence has been issued, a further visit will be made to the premises to
review the practical day-to-day operation of the café. An additional visit may also be undertaken to
ensure the premises is meeting licence conditions.
2. Legal Framework and Controls
2.1 Permissions to use the highway for pavement cafes are granted by the issue of licences by the
Council as the Highway Authority under Section 115E of the Highways Act 1980. Tables and chairs
placed on the highway without permission are an illegal obstruction and the Council will take
enforcement action in such cases. A fine of up to £1,000 can be levied by a Magistrates’ Court for
committing an offence of obstructing the highway.
2.2 Granting a licence to operate a pavement café does not imply an exclusive right to the area. The
operator of the café should be aware that the Council reserves the right to gain access to the café
area for cleaning, repairing and maintaining the highway or street furniture. Other statutory
organisations may also require access for maintenance and repair of their equipment. The Council
therefore reserves the right to suspend the licence temporarily if, for any reason, it becomes
necessary.
2.3 If it appears to a council that a person to whom they have granted a permission under Section 115E
above, has committed any breach of the terms of that permission, they may serve a notice on him
requiring him to take such steps to remedy the breach as are specified in the notice within such time
as is so specified.
2.4 If a person who is served a notice and fails to comply with the notice, the Council has the power to
take whatever steps are necessary themselves.
2.5 Where the Council has incurred expenses in the exercise of the power, then those expenses,
together with interest at a reasonable rate, may be recovered by the Council from the Licence holder.
2.6 Under the terms of the Highways Act 1980, the Council cannot grant permission unless it obtains the
express consent of interested frontages that may be materially affected by the proposal.(Section
115A(7) of the 1980 Act states that “frontagers” means: “the owners and occupiers of any premises
adjoining the part of the highway on, in or over which facilities for recreation or refreshment or both,
have been, are being or would be provided).

Page 13

2.7 For express consent to be required, the frontage would have to be affected by the placing of the
structure etc. between his own frontage and the highway, rather than a structure adjacent to his own
frontage.
2.8 The Pavement Café must operate in accordance with the conditions of the licence. Any breach of the
conditions may lead to action by the Licensing Section to revoke or refuse a licence in the future.
2.9 The Council will not permit any wheeled refuse containers, beer kegs, bottle crates on or adjacent to
the pavement café area.
2.10 The barriers, table, chairs, and layout shall be as agreed by the Council and conform to the plan
at all times.
2.11 The premises should not use A boards or advertising signs or any other unsightly or unapproved
items to be placed adjacent to the area.
2.12 The Licence holder shall make no claims or charge against the Council in the event of the street
furniture being lost, stolen or damaged in any way from whatever cause except where the same is
attributable to negligence of the part of the Council or any of its officers.
2.13 If for whatever period or reason a public liability insurance policy is not in force, the Council shall
be deemed to have withdrawn this Licence for the period during which the said policy is not in force
and the licence holder may be held liable for obstruction of the highway and prosecution under
Section 137 of the Act.
2.14

The licence holder shall not cause or undertake any alterations to the highway surface.

2.15

The licence holder shall not assign, sub-let or part with his interest or possession of a licence.

2.16 The Council may suspend or terminate a licence if any of the conditions of the licence are
breached.
2.17

The licence does not take precedence over Police powers to preserve public order.

3. Private Land
3.1 This policy relates only to pavement cafés on a public highway. Cafes on private land are not
covered by this policy. However, although a pavement cafe on private land may not need a licence, it
may require planning permission if the structures and fittings are not of a temporary nature.
3.2 Land that might to be private may in fact have become part of the highway if the public have enjoyed
access over it for at least twenty years or if the Council has formally adopted the land. Before
proceeding, it would be wise to check with Council Planning Services to establish if planning
permission is necessary.
4. Right of Access
Authorised Officers of the Council and Police Officers shall have access to a pavement café at all
reasonable times.

Page 14

5. Advertising
Advertising of alcoholic or smoking products or their manufacturers will not be permitted on the barriers
or furniture within the Pavement Café area unless approved by the Licensing Manager. Advertising may
only relate to the premises or business and will require the approval of Newport City Council.
6. Designing the Pavement Café
6.1 The size and layout of the proposed Pavement Café will be dependent upon the characteristics of
the site outside of the premises particularly the space available taking into account the needs of
other users and it is not appropriate for this Policy to set a standard size for the Pavement Café.
6.2 Plans will need to be submitted with an application and shall be drawn to scale and must include:
 An up-to-date location plan (1:1250 scale) showing the outline of the premises and the proposed
location of the street café;
 Site layout plan (1:100 or 1:50 scale) showing the proposed boundary, kerb and building lines,
enclosure barriers, points of access, table and seating layout, location of parasols, heaters etc.
6.3 The layout of furniture and means of enclosure will only be approved if adequate provision has been
made for customers with disabilities.
6.4 The Pavement Café should:
 occupy an area directly in front of the Applicant’s premises;
 be visible from these premises; and
 Not extend beyond the width of its frontage (unless in exceptional circumstances and
granted by Licensing Authority).
6.5 Emergency routes from adjacent buildings and the Applicant’s premises should not be obstructed by
the Pavement Café. If the emergency services object to the proposal on safety grounds, it is very
likely that the Council will refuse it.
7. Minimum Unobstructed Space Criteria
7.1 On a normal street, there must remain at least 2.0 metres of unobstructed space between the
carriageway and the front of the pavement cafe to allow pedestrians to pass by safely.
7.2 On streets with high pedestrian usage, there must remain at least 2.75 metres of unobstructed
space.
7.3 Each case will be judged on its merits and the unobstructed space will be set between 2.0 and 2.75
metres according to the frequency of pedestrian usage and other relevant parameters. This
requirement may however be waived by the Council in certain locations but ultimately, the decision
will be made on safety grounds.
8. Lighting
The Applicant for a pavement café licence should, if intending to open beyond dusk, carefully consider
the level of lighting in the proposed pavement café area. Whilst street lighting may be perfectly adequate
for a public highway, it may need supplementing to allow the pavement café to operate safely. Any
additional lighting equipment and supply must be specified in the application to enable its impact upon
the highway to be considered.

Page 15

9. Tables and Chairs shall be:
9.1 Of a neutral colour scheme e.g. chrome, brushed aluminium, black, brown, beige, grey or white, with
natural or neutral stained timber or wicker detailing; all must be fitted with rubber feet to reduce
noise when moving and damage to paved surfaces.
9.2 The Council reserves the right to reject applications where inappropriate furniture is proposed. So it
is advisable to discuss furniture proposals with the Licensing Section before any furniture is
purchased. Full details of proposed furniture will be required upon submission of the application,
including metric dimensions and material and a photo or drawing. When choosing furniture regard
needs to be had of the highway surface on which it will stand uneven or sloping surfaces may require
more sturdy styles of furniture and tables and chairs with narrow or thin legs may cause damage to
certain paving, hours of proposed furniture, accompanied with photographs or drawings
10. Parasols/Umbrellas
10.1 If parasols are to be used, then their metric dimensions, materials and colour must be specified
as part of the application and their proposed locations shown on the site layout plan.
10.2 Parasols, when opened, should be safely secured and contained entirely within the boundaries of
the street café to ensure they do not cause an obstruction or present a danger to any user of the
street café or any other users of the highway.
10.3 The design and colour of parasols will not be restricted to a particular type but they should be
made of high quality materials and fabric and be of a uniform design and colour. Garden style
umbrellas are not acceptable. The base of the parasol must not cause a trip hazard in the street café
area.
10.4 The only advertising permitted on parasols is the name of the café/ business. Such advertising
must not be too dominant and should not detract from the appearance of the building and its setting,
especially in conservation areas. Parasols advertising alcohol or tobacco will not be allowed.
10.5 Canopies, awnings, blinds etc. which are to be attached to the building may require
advertisement consent or planning permission. Advice should be sought from Planning Services.
See the contacts section at the end of this guide.
11. Space Heaters
11.1 If you intend to use space heaters their metric dimensions, materials and colour must be
specified as part of the application and their proposed locations shown on the site layout.
11.2 In considering an application, the City Council will have regard to the inherent safety of the
equipment, its location, storage of Liquid Petroleum Gas cylinders, maintenance and training
arrangements.
11.3 Applicants will be required to submit a formal risk assessment as required by the Management of
Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999. This should be carried out by a competent person
(someone who has knowledge of the law, British Standards, and Health and Safety Executive Codes
of Practice and Guidance).
11.4






The Council will consider the adequacy of the risk assessment which must:
Identify the hazards e.g. fire, explosion, burns, impact from falling equipment / cylinders
Decide who may be harmed and how
Evaluate the risks and decide whether proposed precautions will be adequate or whether more
could be done.
Record findings
Review assessment and revise if necessary

Page 16

12. Barriers
12.1 Barriers or other means of enclosure are required in order to ease/ guide pedestrian movement,
guide the visually impaired, protect users of the facility and mark the boundary of the licensed area.
12.2 The agreed street cafe boundaries shown on the plan that will be attached to the licence if
successful must be adhered to at all times. The boundaries are required to be enclosed by either
barriers or planters. These must be portable.
12.3 It is essential that the means of enclosure is fit for purpose and suitable for the terrain in which
that the pavement café operates. Should the Council deem barriers unsafe, we may ask that the
tables and chairs to be removed until suitable barriers are provided. The means of enclosure must:






Be stable and sturdy for all weather conditions the pavement café will operate in, including windy
conditions: additional weights may be necessary to ensure barriers remain stable and secure;
Not contain protruding parts;
Have a tapping rail along the bottom of the barrier that visually impaired pedestrians can use to
navigate around the street café using a stick;
Only display the name of the café/ business. They must not be used to advertise products or
services. No alcohol advertising or tobacco is permitted. Proposed details of means of enclosure
must be provided with the application.
Hoops or post and chain type barriers and low-level objects will not be acceptable.

Barriers must not be permanently fixed to the ground where this is public highway
13. Example of Good Practice

Examples of furniture not permitted

Page 17

14. Managing the street café & Insurance.
The licensee will be required to indemnify the Council against all actions, demands, costs, charges or
expenses arising from using the highway under the permission granted. The Council will, therefore,
require the licensee to take out third party public liability insurance in the sum of at least £5,000,000.
15. Operation
15.1 Hours of operation will be determined on the application merits; although the following maximum
hours will apply:
 The Licensing hours for street furniture will only be granted between the hours of 9:30hrs to
23:00hrs.
 All furniture should be removed between the hours of 23:00hrs to 9:30hrs unless the premises
are licensed under the Licensing Act 2003 (for sale of alcohol).In this case, barriers can remain in
place until either when premises close, or no later than 04:00hrs to create a “smoking area”.
 No furniture other than space heaters, parasols should be present in the “smoking area” and no
alcoholic drinks nor should glassware present in this “smoking area” after 22:30hrs. The smoking
area will be required to be covered by CCTV and by SIA door staff and comply with smoking
regulations.
15.2 Licences are granted for a maximum of one year and are renewable annually. Licences for new
sites will be subject to a three month probationary period.
15.3
A copy of the Licence and plan must be kept on the premises at all times and be available for
inspection. When the area of a street café has been agreed, a definitive plan of the area showing the
boundaries and the dimensions will be attached to, and form part of, the Licence.
16. Fees
16.1 The administration fee for processing a street café licence application will cover the
administrative and legal costs incurred in the preparation and issuing of the licence. Those existing
business operating before the introduction of this Policy, will be given a 75% discount in the first 12
months of the introduction of the policy. Those premises that have existing licences will be granted
“Grandfather” status.
16.2 Upon approval of the licence, the balance of the fee will be required which covers the monitoring
and enforcement and is based upon the number of chairs and tables and hours of use.
16.3

The fees for current year are to be found at the appendix and will be subject to an annual review.

17. Granting of a licence
Under the terms of the Highways Act 1980, the Council is required to advertise applications for street
café licences for not less than 28 days by posting notices in the vicinity of the proposed street cafe.
These notices set out details of the proposals and invite representations to be made by people who may
be affected. If no objections are raised, the Licence will be granted within 5 working days, if an objection
is raised, the delegated Service Manager will be required to determine the application within 20 working
days.
18. CONDITIONS FOR PAVEMENT CAFÉ LICENCES.
Please note that these conditions are not an exhaustive list, and each application will be
considered on its own merits and bespoke conditions may be attached where deemed
appropriate.
1.

The maximum permitted hours of operation as stated on the attached licence shall not be exceeded
without prior permission from the Council.

Page 18

2.

A copy of the licence and pavement café layout must remain at the premises and must be produced
to any authorised officer on request.
3. Food or non-alcoholic drinks must be available at all times when the pavement café is open.
4. Posts, barriers tables and chairs shall not be placed upon the highway before the commencement of
operational hours and shall be removed entirely before the end of the operational hours. The area
shall be left clean and tidy and free of any rubbish.
5. Furniture stored within the premises should not at any time block a fire exit.
6. The use of advertisement boards is prohibited.
7. The advertising of alcohol or cigarettes is prohibited.
8. Barriers and parasols can advertise the name of the business only.
9. The café area must be supervised at all times whilst it is operational.
10. No live or recorded music shall be played within any part of the Pavement Café.
11. Emergency routes from adjacent buildings and the applicant’s premises shall not be obstructed by
the pavement café.
12. The licence holder shall not cause or permit any alterations to the highway surface.
13. The licence holder shall not assign, sub-let or part with his interest or possession of a licence.
14. Authorised Officers of the Council and Police Officers shall have access to a pavement café at all
reasonable times.
15. If requested by a police officer or an authorised officer of the Council, all items shall be removed
from the highway. These items shall remain off the highway for as long as is required.
16. The licence holder shall be responsible for the conduct of people, both patrons and employees,
within the pavement café area.
17. Patrons shall not be permitted to remove food, drinks, crockery or any cutlery from the pavement
café.
18. All tables must be cleared of all uneaten food, used crockery, cutlery etc. and properly cleaned of
any spillage immediately they are vacated by customers.
19. Food and drink must not be stored or prepared outside the normal premises
20. All the food and drink that is consumed within the pavement café area must be ordered and
purchased there.
21. All furniture shall be of high quality constructed of wood or metal and approved by the Council.
22. Parasols, when opened must not overhang the boundary of the pavement café and must remain
closed in periods of high winds.
23. Permitted receptacles to be used within the pavement café are: Glasses made of toughened or tempered safety glass
 Glasses made of polycarbonate or plastic
 Paper Cups
 China cups, saucers and plates
24. The use of barbecues, rotisseries, ice cream machines, drinks machines or any other equipment for
the preparation and / or sale of food and drink for consumption on or off the premises will not be
permitted within the pavement café area.
25. The entire pavement café (apart from entrances) shall be enclosed in its entirety with a suitable
barrier, the design and dimensions of which must be agreed, in writing, by the Council. Space will be
required for circulation and access within the enclosed area in addition to that for tables and
equipment.
26. All activity associated with the pavement café shall be contained within the boundary including
tables, chairs and other permitted equipment.
27. The agreed boundary and layout of the pavement café as defined by the plan attached to the
Licence shall not be altered without the express permission of the Council.
28. Barriers must not be permanently fixed to the ground on a public highway.
29. A minimum distance of 2.0 metres between the edge of the pavement café and the edge of any
adjacent carriageway or vehicle route shall be maintained. If the pavement café is on a street with a
high pedestrian usage this minimum may be increased to 2.75 metres. An absolute minimum clear
width of 2.0 metre is required from any single point of obstruction e.g. bollard
30. The licence holder shall keep the area within the boundaries clean and litter free at all times Any
litter that escapes from the inside of the licensed area to the outside of the area shall be collected by
the licence holder.

Page 19

31. Suitable litter/refuse bin(s) shall be provided within the pavement café area at all times of operation
and taken inside at close of trading. The licence holder shall be responsible for disposing of all
waste produced at the pavement café.
32. The licence holder shall provide Public Liability insurance cover for the pavement café and shall
indemnify the Council against all claims in respect of injury, damage or loss arising out of the
granting of permission, (e.g. damage to the highway or highway furniture) to a minimum value of
£5,000,000 unless such claims arise out of the Council’s own negligence.
33. If for whatever period or reason a public liability insurance policy is not in force, the Council shall be
deemed to have withdrawn this Licence for the period during which the said policy is not in force and
the licence holder may be held liable for obstruction of the highway and prosecution under Section
137 of the Act.
34. Where repair or maintenance of the pavement/highway is to be undertaken, Newport City Council
will not be liable for any loss of trade and/or income whilst repair/maintenance is carried out. The
Licence Holder/s must allow the Council reasonable access for such works.
35. Where gas heaters are used, the connections, including the regulator, hose & clips must be fit for
purpose and checked on a regular basis and not be exposed in such a way that they are a trip
hazard.
36. All customers using the Pavement Café will be required to be seated. Vertical drinking will not be
permitted unless SIA door staff are present to monitor the area.
37. If the area is going to be used after 21:00hrs, CCTV will be installed to cover all of the area. The
date and time settings on the system must be correct and the CCTV system must be capable of
recording images to a suitable medium that allows reply. Recordings must be retained for a
minimum of 31 days. Staff shall be trained in the maintenance and operation of the CCTV system
with a record kept of the date and name of person trained. A trained member of staff should be on
duty to operate the system whenever the premises are open.
38. All drinking vessels shall be polycarbonate at request of Gwent Police.
39. If 6 or more tables are used, 50% of the area should be also a non-smoking area until 23:00hrs
Appendix to Policy
Fees 2017/18
These fees will be subject to an annual review and may increase.
The administration fee for processing a street café licence application is £150 and covers the
administrative and legal costs incurred in the preparation and issuing of the licence. Those existing
business operating before the introduction of this Policy, will be given a 75% discount in the first 12
months of the introduction of the policy. Those premises that have existing licences will be granted
“Grandfather” status.
Upon approval of the licence, the balance of the fee will be required which covers the monitoring and
enforcement and is based upon the number of chairs and tables and hours of use.
Number Tables & Chairs
No more 4 chairs (1 to 2 tables)
No more 12 chairs (1 to 6 tables)
No more than 24 chairs (1 to 12 tables)
More than 24 chairs (unspecified number tables)
If the premises wish to operate a “Smoking Area” after 23:00hrs
Change of name on licence or duplicate licence.
*This fee will be subject to an annual review and may increase.

Page 20

Annual Fee*
£55
£85
£150
£185
Additional £50
£25

Appendix B
Representations from consultation

Tel/ Ffôn:
Website:
Twitter:

07885861741
www.themeans.co.uk
@themeans_live

The means: to change places for the better
London Office
133 Great Suffolk Street
London SE1 1PP
Phone/Ffon: +44 (0)20 7403 4135
Swyddfa Cymru
Unit 3, West End Yard
21-25 West End, Llanelli
Sir Gâr / Carmarthenshire
SA15 3DN
Phone / Ffôn: +44 (0)1554 780170

Hi All,
Here’s my feedback based on town centre management over the last few years where this issue was
raised. While I agree that there needs to be regulation to ensure safety, adding another charge for the
licence administration to struggling businesses on top of all the other bills and yes I include the BID levy
in those charges is hard to swallow. The way this was done in other town centres that I have worked in
was to simply have council staff keep an eye on café furniture as part of their patrol e.g. town centre
managers, highways staff and wardens. These staff would give verbal warning to traders who were not
following the guidance, followed up with a written warning and then enforcement as a last resort. This
also happened with A Boards as well. We even brought the visually impaired group in to explain to some
of the more awkward traders that didn’t see what they were doing as an issue.
This worked in that traders liked the collaborative approach. But that’s just my own opinion and
experience.
Regards,
Adrian Evans
Newport Now BID Manager & Project Manager ‘The means’

Page 21

From: lindsey hayes [mailto:**********]
Sent: 03 January 2017 00:16
To: Environment Licensing
Subject: PLACING TABLES, CHAIRS AND OTHER OBSTRUCTIONS ON PAVEMENTS OUTSIDE
SHOPS, PUBS AND RESTAURANTS IN NEWPORT
I write to express my concerns over Newport Council’s proposal to allow tables, chairs, barriers, parasols
and other items to be placed outside shops, restaurants, and pubs because there are already too many
items causing obstructions on pavements in Newport which are a health and safety hazard for the
elderly, infirm and those with young children.
Having to avoid such obstructions would make shopping in Newport much more difficult for the visually
impaired and disabled who find every step that they walk painful.
Newport City Council appears to think that smokers who pollute the air with their disgusting habit should
be given priority over those mentioned above. Smoking not only affects the health of the smoker but
those around them too.
Pavements in Newport are not wide enough to accommodate such obstructions and could force
pedestrians into the road with the potential of a serious accident occurring as a result.
I wonder how many smokers are on the panel at Newport Council who are proposing this. My guess is a
large number.
Lindsey Hayes

From: Catherine Campbell [mailto:***********]
Sent: 03 February 2017 16:14
To: Environment Licensing
Subject: Outdoor eating in Newport
We were asked to respond to the above proposal. Fantastic I am all for it BUT the extended space
should be considered to be an extension of the cafe or restaurant and smoking should be banned. It is
disgusting when we get some nice weather and sit outside only to find someone on the next table
blowing smoke onto your food. It is not an example of the majority being marginalised and our rights as
non-smokers being ignored.
Thank you for taking the time to consider my view.
Catherine Campbell, Marshfield

From: Cheryl Wilkinson [mailto:*******]
Sent: 30 December 2016 18:01
To: Environment Licensing
Subject: pavement cafes
Hi
Want to know how it all works, go to Brussels. They have a whole pedestrianised street full of pavement
cafes.
Best regards, CW

Page 22

